

## THE INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF NIGERIA

(Established by Act of Parliament No. 15 of 1965)

Plot 16, Idowu Taylor Street, Victoria Island P.O Box 1580, Marina Lagos, Nigeria. Tel: 09053847510-1

E-mail: info.ican@ican.org.ng, rce@ican.org.ng

Website: www.icanig.org

Registrar/Chief Executive AHMED M. KUMSHE, (PROF.) FCA

April 29, 2021

To: All the District Chairmen,

#### APPROVED DISTRICT SOCIETIES' BYE-LAW

Sequel to the complaints by some District Societies on the applicability of chapter three of the byelaw. Council at its meeting of Thursday, 29th April, 2021 amended chapter three of the bye-law and also assigned functions to the membership secretary.

You are hereby required to strictly apply the provisions of this bye-law in administering the activities of your district society.

Please find attached a signed copy of the revised district societies' bye-law for the use of the executives and district members.

Thank you.

Yours sincerely,

M. A. LAWAL, FCA

For: Registrar/Chief Executive

PAPER 6.2C

Laquete



THE INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF NIGERIA

# BYE LAW

FOR

# DISTRICT SOCIETIES

AND

CHAPTERS

Marie .

Aleuning

28 Janub 95

# BYE LAW FOR DISTRICT SOCIETIES OF

# THE INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF NIGERIA

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# **CHAPTERS & SECTIONS**

CHA	APTER ONE						PAGE
1.1	Name						
1.2		***	444	***	***		4
1.3	Aims & Objectives	***	***	***	***		4
1.4	Geographical Coverage of the Society		***	***	***		4
1.4	Flags, Symbols, Badges	***	***	•••	***		5
CHA	APTER TWO - MEMBERSHIP					(4)	*0
2.1	Membership						
2.2	Admission	***	***	***	***	***	6
2.3	Cessation of Membership	***	***	***	***	***	6
2.4	Transfer of Membership		***		***	***	6 7
		107		8:373	-		***
CHA	PTER THREE - EXECUTIVE COMM	ITTE	E				
3.1	Composition of the Executive Committee	ee		*****			8
3.2	Eligibility						8
3.3	Duties of Officers in the Executive Committee						10
3.4	Functions of the Officers in the Executive Committee			е	900	***	11
3.5	Tenure of Officers in the Executive Cor	nmitt	66			***	13
3.6	Vacancies in the Executive Committee						14
3.7	Sub-Committees				***	***	14
СНА	PTER FOUR - ELECTIONS					*	
4.1	Appointment of Electoral Committee				2000		15
4.2	Election into Executive Committee	507			***	***	15
4.3	Election Procedures						16
4.4	Election Grievances -		***	***			16
СНА	PTER FIVE – AUDITOR						
5.1	Appointment of Auditor						
5.2	Appointment of Auditor Retirement of Auditor			***	***	***	17
J.L	Retirement of Auditor		***	***	***	. ***	17

Million Carried

Homming

and Samuel State

# CHAPTER SIX - MEETINGS

6.1	Executive Committee Meeting		***				18
6.2	General Meeting		****	***			18
6.3	Annual General Meeting						18
6.4	Notice of Meeting						19
6.5	Chairman of Meetings			***		***	19
6.6	Quorum at Meetings		***	***	***	***	19
6.7	Adjournment of Meetings		•••	***		***	20
6.8	Voting at Meetings and Demand for pol	II.	***	***	***	***	20
6.9	Minutes of Meetings			***	***	1000	20
CHA	APTER SEVEN - FINANCE			***			
7.1	Sources of Funds						
7.2			***	***	***		21
7.3	Banking of Funds		***	***	***	•••	21
7.4	Signatories to the Bank Account	***	***	***	***	•••	21
	Mandate		***	***	•••	***	22
7.5	Annual Dues	***	***		***	***	22
7.6	Application of Funds	***	***	***	***	•••	22
7.7	Indemnity of Executive Committee	•••	***	***	***	* ***	22
CHA	PTER EIGHT - BENEFITS						
8.1	Distressed Member						23
8.2	Death	***					23
8.3	MCPD Credit Hours	***	1011	***	***		23
8.4	Facility from Commercial Bank			***			23
8.5	Active Member				***		23
CHA	PTER NINE - ZONAL DISTRICT MA	ANAGE	MENT				
9.1	Zonal District					R Oscar	25
9.2	Aims and Objectives of Zonal District.		2000		***	****	25
9.3	Zonal Executive Committee						25
9.4	Composition of Zonal Executive Com-						25
9.5	Election Guidelines		***	***			25
9.6	Zonal Conference .				•••	***	26
9.7	Funding of the Zone						26
9.8	Application of the Funds	***	***				26
9.9	Banking of Funds	32.0					27
9.10	Signatories and Mandate to the Accou	int			***	•••	27
9.11	Zonal Conference Bank Account				***	•••	27
9.12	Signatories and Mandate to the Confe					***	27

Milli Carper

Agenninnin

CHAPTER TEN – GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1	District Coordination							20
10.2	District Cooperative So	ciety		***	***	***	***	28
10.3	Patrons and Committee		almaa	***	***	***	***	29
10.4					***	***	***	29
	Executive Committee o	the Coope	rative Sc	ciety	***	222	****	29
10.5	Conflict			***	***	***		29
10.6	Dispute		***	***	***			30
10.7	Amendment			***				30
10.8	Review				•••	•••	***	1007/3
10.9	Commencement Date	* 1	****	***	***	***	***	30
10.10	Interpretation		***	***	***	***	***	30
10.11	Protocols		***	200	***	555	***	30
10.11	Protocols		***	***				30
Sched	ule 1	0.0						
Guidel	ines for the formation of	a District S	ociety		***			32
Sched	ule 2		- 8			2.10		
Guidel	ines for the formation of	a Chantas						

Mill Carrol

Henning

ASSEMUND STEED

# **CHAPTER ONE**

#### 1.1 NAME

The name of the Association shall be ...... & DISTRICT SOCIETY OF THE INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF NIGERIA (hereinafter referred to as 'the Society').

#### 1.2 AIMS & OBJECTIVES

The aims and objectives of the Society include the following:

- (a) to uphold the tenets of the Institute in the District;
- to support the members and students within the District as defined under section 1.3 of the Bye Law;
- (c) to implement the policies of the Institute at the District level;
- (d) to hold regular meetings of the Society and organise trainings, seminars, conferences webinars and workshops for members of the District, other members of the Institute and the society at large.
- (e) to organise events such as Annual Dinner, Annual General Meeting (AGM), etc;
- (f) to disseminate other information of interest to members and the society at large.
- (g) to attract and drive membership to the Institute through various

   enlightenment and educational programmes in secondary and tertiary institutions e.g.

   Catch Them Young Programme, etc;
- (h) to follow up on members' welfare and disputes resolutions;
- to represent the Institute at the community level, liaising with States and Local Governments, and other Institutions on issues affecting Accounting profession
- to handle matters affecting the Institute within its locality and report back to the Institute;
- (k) to establish and maintain libraries for the use of members and students.

# 1.3 GEOGRAPHICAL COVERAGE OF THE SOCIETY

Adems

PROVIDED THAT for a District Society based outside Nigeria, the area covered by the Society shall be all States in ....... (the country outside Nigeria where the District Society situates).

# 1.4 FLAGS, SYMBOLS, BADGES

PROVIDED THAT for a District Society based outside Nigeria, the flags, symbols, Badges represent the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN) logo with the Motto (Accuracy and Integrity), the Country outside Nigeria where the District Society situates and the Nigerian flag.

Mille Care On

Adonnungi

Assamob 995.

# **CHAPTER TWO**

# MEMBERSHIP

#### 2.1 MEMBERSHIP

The Society shall have three (3) membership categories namely:

- (a) Registered Accountant: Members with foreign membership qualification of any Professional Accountancy Organization recognized by the Institute who have satisfied all necessary conditions as determined by the Council of the Institute and have been inducted and registered by the Registrar/Chief Executive as a Registered Accountant of the Institute.
- (b) Associate Member: Members who have passed the qualifying examinations of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria and have been duly admitted and registered by the Registrar/Chief Executive into the Membership Records of the Institute.
- (c) Fellow Member: These are members that have been conferred with the fellowship status by the Institute.

PROVIDED THAT for a District Society based outside Nigeria, the laws and regulations of the host country shall be considered before recognizing a member of any other Professional Accountancy Organisation (PAO) in the host country being an IFAC member recognized by the Institute.

#### 2.2 ADMISSION

- (a) Any member of the Institute, who normally resides, practices or is employed within the area of the Society as defined under section 1.3 of the Bye Law shall be entitled to be admitted as a member of the Society.
- (b) Multiple memberships shall not be allowed.
- (c) Every new member is required to pay a registration fee, annual dues and any other levies as may be prescribed by the Executive Committee of the District subject to review from time to time. Payment shall be due on 1st January of every year.

#### 2.3 CESSATION OF MEMBERSHIP

- (a) Death: A member loses his membership upon death.
- (b) A member shall cease to be a member of the Society if he ceases to be a member of the Institute.
- (c) A member may also resign his membership at any time on giving notice, in writing, to the General Secretary of the Society provided he fulfills his financial and other obligations to the District Society

Agominap

A member found quilty by

- A member found guilty by the Institute's Accountants Disciplinary Tribunal shall cease to be a member of the District Society.
- (e) A Member shall be deemed to lose his membership if he ceases to pay his annual subscriptions and levies in the Society for a consecutive period of three (3) years except with a written permission to the District Society and subject to Executive Committee members approval.

## 2.4 TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIP

This shall occur where a member relocates his place of residence or his work place.

- A member transferring his membership must have settled his outstanding subscriptions with his old District Society (if any) before officially transferring his membership;
- A member transferring his membership shall be issued a letter of clearance by his old District Society.

BS DANN BERT

# CHAPTER THREE

# **EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**

# 3.1 COMPOSITION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

#### 3.1.1 GROUP A AND B DISTRICT SOCIETIES

There shall be in place an Executive Committee that will administer the Society at any given period. This Executive Committee shall comprise the following officers: Chairman, Vice Chairman, Deputy Vice Chairman, General Secretary, Treasurer, Financial Secretary, Technical Secretary, Social/Welfare Secretary, Membership Secretary, Assistant General Secretary, Ex-officios: Four (4), one (1) of whom shall be the Immediate Past Chairman (save the Immediate Past Chairman of a Caretaker Committee) and the SWAN Chairperson (where there is no SWAN Chapter, the Executive Committee shall appoint an active SWAN member who shall represent the interest of women in the District).

In line with the Institute's succession plan, the office of the Chairman and Vice Chairman should not be contested for. The Vice Chairman shall automatically move to the position of the Chairman if he/she meets the conditions stated in this Bye-Law. Same applies to the Deputy Vice Chairman who shall move to the position of the Vice Chairman. Other positions from the Deputy Vice Chairman downwards shall be contested for.

#### 3.1.2 GROUP C

There shall be in place an Executive Committee that will administer the Society at any given period. The executive committee shall comprise the following officers: Chairman, Vice Chairman, General Secretary, Treasurer, Financial Secretary, Technical Secretary, Social/Publicity Secretary, Assistant General Secretary, Ex-officios: Four (4), one (1) of whom shall be the Immediate Past Chairman (save the Immediate Past Chairman of a Caretaker Committee) and the SWAN Chairperson (where there is no SWAN Chapter, the Executive Committee shall appoint an active SWAN member who shall represent the interest of women in the District).

In line with the Institute's succession plan, the office of the Chairman should not be contested for. The Vice Chairman shall automatically move to the position of the Chairman if he/she meets the conditions stated in this Bye-Law. Other positions from the Vice Chairman downwards shall be contested for.

#### 3.2 ELIGIBILITY

- a. To be eligible to contest as a member of the Executive Committee, the candidate:
- Must be a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria.
- Must be an Associate or Fellow of the Institute
- iii. Must be a financial member at both the District and Institute levels

Hominmy

IV. Must record at least 75% atten

 Must record at least 75% attendance at general meetings of the District Society during the current Chairmanship year

v. Must attain a minimum of 90 MCPD credit hours (or any amount of credit hours as may be determined by Council from time to time) within the last three years (i.e up to 31st December) preceding the year of election.

PROVIDED THAT for a District Society based outside Nigeria, the candidate must be a financial member at both the District and Institute levels with at least 50% attendance at meetings of the District Society and a minimum of 90 MCPD credit hours (or any amount of credit hours as may be determined by Council from time to tme) obtained within the last three years (ie up to 31st December) preceding the year of election from the Institute or any other Professional Accountancy Organisation (PAO) in the host country being an IFAC member recognised by the Institute.

- vi. Must not be a member of the Governing Council of the Institute.
- vii. Must not be a staff of the Institute.
- viii. Must not be a staff of any District Society of the Institute.
- ix. Must not be a Staff of the Independent Auditors of the District Society
- b. To be eligible for any of the aforementioned positions in the Executive Committee, the following conditions shall be fulfilled:

#### Chairman:

- Must have been an active member of the Society and elected as a member of the Executive Committee for a continuous period of not less than five years except if the District Society has not been in existence for up to 5 years.
- ii. Must have been a Vice Chairman or General Secretary of the Society.

#### Vice Chairman:

 Must have been an active member of the Society and elected as a member of the Executive Committee for a continuous period of not less than five years except if the District Society has not been in existence up to 5 years.

#### Deputy Vice Chairman, General Secretary and Treasurer:

 Must have been an active member of the Society and an elected member of the Executive Committee for a continuous period of not less than three years except for a newly created District Society.

Hemming

Other positions:

- Must have been active members of the District Society for a continuous period of not less than three years except for a newly created District Society.
- Ex-officios: Save for the position reserved for the immediate past Chairman, SWAN Chairperson/representative, the position of the other two shall be contested for by a member who must have been active in the District Society for a continuous period of not less than three years, except for a District Society that has not been in existence for a period of three years.

PROVIDED THAT in the case of a District Society based outside Nigeria, the following conditions shall apply

#### Chairman:

 Must have been an active member of the Society and an elected member of the Executive Committee for a continuous period of not less than three years except for a newly created district society.

#### Vice Chairman:

 Must have been an active member of the Society and an elected member of the Executive Committee for a period of not less than two years except for a newly created district society

#### Other positions:

- i. Must have served in any of the standing Committees for one year OR
- Must have served as an elected member of the Executive Committee for at least one year
- c. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3(2)(b) above, the election of Executive Committee members in District Societies where the eligibility conditions may not be met, including District Societies outside Nigeria, the affected District Societies shall apply to Council for a waiver.

#### 3.3 DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- (a) To co-ordinate and control the affairs of the Society, regulate its membership and oversee the interests of the members (including students) in the area.
- (b) To submit to the Council of the Institute its programme for the coming year:
- (c) To submit an annual report in the form prescribed by the Council to the Annual General Meeting of the Society, and to the Council of the Institute.

Ademining

- (d) The Executive Committee may employ one or more persons as administrative officers to assist the Executive Committee in its functions.
- (e) In the event of any matter or question arising which is not covered wholly or in part by this Bye Law for the time being in force, the Executive Committee shall have full power, and after due consultations with the Body of Past Chairmen of the Society, subject to the approval of Council to deal with such matter(s) or question(s) as it shall think expedient in the interest of the Society

#### 3.4 FUNCTIONS OF THE OFFICERS IN THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

#### (a) Chairman

Janua Janua

- The Chairman of the Society shall be the Chairman at all meetings of the Society and the Executive Committee.
- (ii) He shall do his utmost best to ensure the achievement of the objectives of the Society as enumerated in section 1.2 of this Bye Law.

#### (b) Vice-Chairman

- He shall act in all matters specified in section 1.2 of this Bye Law in the absence of the Chairman.
- (ii) He shall on all other occasions, generally assist the Chairman in carrying out his functions.
- (iii) He shall chair the Executive Committee meeting and other meetings in the absence of the Chairman.
- (vi) He shall be the sole candidate for the position of Chairman except if he has committed any offence which in the opinion of the district society disqualifies him from contesting the position of a Chairman subject to the approval of Council.

#### (c) Deputy Vice Chairman

- He shall assist the Chairman and Vice Chairman in running the affairs of the district society.
- (ii) He shall preside over the Executive Committee meeting and any other district meetings in the absence of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman.

# (d) General Secretary

- He shall convene all meetings of the Society in consultation with the Chairman and in accordance with the provisions of this Bye Law.
- (ii) He shall receive and process applications for membership.

Henning

greet good.

- (iii) He shall take minutes of Executive Committee meetings, monthly general meeting, Annual General Meeting and any other general meeting of the District Society.
- (vi) He shall maintain register of attendance of the meetings as stated in clause 3 above.
- (v) He shall maintain and update register of members of the Society.

#### (d) Treasurer

- He shall be responsible for banking all monies received on behalf of the Society.
- (ii) He shall be the custodian of the Society's cheque books and other financial instruments.
- (iii) He shall be responsible for the disbursement of the Society's monies subject to the approval of the Executive Committee.

## (e) Financial Secretary

- (i) He shall keep the financial records and accounts of the Society.
- He shall present monthly Financial Statements to the Executive Committee and quarterly Financial Statements to the members.
- (iii) He shall present the income statement and financial position of the preceding financial year certified by the Auditor at the Annual General Meeting.
- (iv) The Financial Secretary shall be responsible for keeping proper books of account and shall prepare the accounts of the Society in the form prescribed by the Council.

## (f) Technical Secretary

- He shall be responsible for organizing technical sessions.
- (ii) He shall be responsible for the management and coordination of professional materials for publication in the District's newsletter, magazine and the official website.
- (iii) He shall undertake research work on finance and accountancy on behalf of the District.
- (iv) He shall report the work of the Faculties of the Institute to the members
- (v) He shall liaise closely with the Technical Department of the Institute.

## (g) Social/Publicity Secretary

- (i) He shall be responsible for the organization of all social functions of the Society.
- (ii) He shall ensure that a positive image of the Society is maintained at all times.
- -(iii) He shall be responsible for all public relation functions of the Society.

Alemining

(h) Assistant General Secretary

(i) He shall assist the General

(i) He shall assist the General Secretary generally and act for him in his absence.

 He shall be responsible for the mobilization of students within the area(s) covered by the Society for the purpose of registration for the Institute's examinations.

## (i) Social/Welfare Secretary

i He shall be in charge of the members welfare.

Any other function as may be assigned by the Executive Committee and approved by the members at the monthly general meeting.

## (j) Membership Secretary

i He shall be responsible for the mobilisation of members into the District Society

ii Any other function as may be assigned by the Executive Committee and approved by the members at the monthly general meeting.

#### (k) Ex-Officio Members

- They must attend meetings.
- (ii) They shall perform duties that shall be assigned from time to time by the Executive Committee through the Chairman.

The Executive Committee subject to the approval of the members at the general meeting shall assign functions to other Executive Committee members whose functions are not mentioned in this Bye Law subject to the approval of Council.

#### 3.5 TENURE OF OFFICERS IN THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- (a) The tenure of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman shall be for a term of one year only, provided that:
  - A Chairman who has been elected for a single term of two years before the commencement of this Bye Law shall complete his tenure of two years;
  - (ii) A Chairman who is elected before the commencement of this Bye Law for a renewable one year term shall be eligible to contest for reelection for another term and no more.
  - (iii) The Chairman of a District Society that was inaugurated before the commencement of this Bye Law shall be in office for a period of one year ending 31st of May. However, if as at 31st May after his inauguration, he has not been in office for one year, he shall continue till the next 31st May and no more. This implies that the Chairman will not be in office for two years.

Affenn

13

Any member of the Executive who shall be absent from three consecutive
 Executive/General meetings unless he has submitted a written apology or obtained permission from the Chairman or Secretary shall cease to be a member of the Executive.
 PROVIDED THAT in the case of a District Society based outside Nigeria, the following condition shall apply:

The tenure of Officers in a particular office in the Executive Committee shall be for a term of one year subject to a maximum of two terms i.e., from one AGM to the next AGM.

- (c) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3.5(a) above, all members of a Caretaker Committee shall vacate their seats at the end of the assignment.
- (d) To align the Chairmanship year of the District Societies, with the Institute's Presidential year, the following shall apply:
  - Every District Society Chairmanship year shall run from 1<sup>st</sup> June to 31<sup>st</sup> May of every year.
  - (ii) For District Societies which tenure does not align with the Institute's Presidential year, the current Executive Committee shall continue in office till 31st May of 2021 and shall hand over in the 1st week of June 2021. District Societies with a single tenure of two years are expected to hand over in the 1st week of June of 2022 if the tenure has not expired as at 31st May 2021.

#### 3.6 VACANCIES IN THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- (a) The seat of an Executive Committee Member shall become vacant upon his relocation from the District to another location during the Chairmanship year in accordance to section 2.4 of this Bye Law.
- (b) If any vacancy in the membership of the Executive Committee occurs between two Annual General Meetings, the Executive Committee may, if it considers it necessary, appoint an eligible person to fill such vacancy.
- (c) An eligible person shall be appointed by the Executive Committee to complete the tenure of the former officer. However the period of filling the vacancy shall not be counted as a term in office for the officer who filled the vacancy.
- (d) Any appointment to fill a vacancy by the Executive Committee shall however be subject to ratification by majority of members present at the next general meeting of the Society.

#### 3.7 SUB-COMMITTEES

The Executive Committee shall appoint members of Sub-committees as it deems necessary to carry out specific functions to assist it in achieving the objects of the Society.

Alemining

As January San ...

# CHAPTER FOUR

# ELECTIONS

#### 4.1 APPOINTMENT OF ELECTORAL COMMITTEE

- (a) The Executive Committee of the Society shall between two (2) and three (months) before an Annual General Meeting appoint an Electoral Committee of not less than three (3) and not more than five (5) financial members of the Society subject to ratification by a simple majority of the members in attendance at the District monthly meeting.
- (b) The Chairman of the electoral committee shall be a Past Chairman of the District Society. Where no Past Chairman exist, a senior member of the Institute who must be a fellow shall be the Chairman.
- (c) The Electoral Committee shall be responsible for organizing the District Societies election in line with this Bye Law.

#### 4.2 ELECTION INTO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- (a) Nomination of candidates for election or re-election to the Executive Committee shall be made by notice in writing signed by not less than two financial members of the Society, who shall also be up to date in their subscriptions to the Institute.
- (b) The Notice must be received by the Electoral Committee and registered by the Secretary to the Electoral Committee or the Society's Administrative Officer not later than 2 months to the District Society's Annual General Meeting.
- (c) Such notice shall be accompanied by a written acceptance from each candidate of his willingness to serve if elected or re-elected, as the case may be.
- (c) A list of the names of all candidates nominated for election or re-election shall be sent to all members of the Society with the notice for the Annual General Meeting.

15

Aleunumy

BSJum & ST

For such candidates to be eligible to be voted for, they must be financially up to date at both the Society and the Institute levels.

- (f) They shall also satisfy the attendance requirements in 3.2 a(iii) supra.
- (g) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.2 above, the election shall be in consonance to Section 3.2a above.

#### 4.3 ELECTION PROCEDURES

- (a) The method of conducting elections shall be by ballot of those members eligible to vote who are present at the meeting or by electronic voting unless voting by show of hands is demanded by the majority of members eligible to vote and present at the meeting.
- (b) Whenever events and situations make physical voting impracticable, the Electoral Committee may activate an electronic/remote voting protocol in a manner considered appropriate.
- (c) In the event of equality of votes between two or more candidates for any vacancy, the Electoral Committee shall conduct a re-run election immediately.
- (d) In the event of a tie after re-run has been conducted, the Chairman of the Electoral Committee shall have a casting vote.
- (e) The declaration of the result of the election by the Chairman of the Electoral Committee shall be final.
- (f) Immediately after the declaration of election result at AGM, the Chairman of the Electoral Committee will swear- in the newly elected officers.

#### 4.4 ELECTION GRIEVANCES

- (a) The Committee of Past Chairmen where in existence shall constitute an Appeal Committee with respect to election grievances.
- (b) Where the Committee is not in existence, the Executive Committee shall appoint a Past Chairman and two experienced members to settle an election grievance.
- (c) Where there is no past Chairman, the Executive Committee shall appoint a member who must be a fellow and two other members to settle the electoral grievance.
- (d) Where a grievance is not resolved at the Society level, such grievance shall be referred to the Institute and a copy to the District Coordinator.

o Mille Course

Aleinning'

Janua & January & ...

# **CHAPTER FIVE**

## **AUDITOR**

#### 5.1 APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

- (a) The members at an Annual General Meeting shall appoint an honorary auditor who shall be a member of the Society in practice, at such remuneration if any, as the meeting shall determine.
- (b) No member of the Executive Committee shall be eligible for appointment as an auditor.
- (c) In the event of any vacancy occurring in the office of auditor between two Annual General Meetings or a vacancy not being filled at an Annual General Meeting, the vacancy shall be filled by the Executive Committee at a meeting summoned with notice of the subject, provided that during such vacancy any retiring auditor shall act.
- (d) The auditor shall retire at the next Annual General Meeting after his appointment but shall be eligible for re-appointment subject to a maximum of 5 years.
- (e) PROVIDED THAT for a District Society based outside Nigeria, the word "Investigator" may be used in place of "Auditor" or any other word as may be applicable in the country where the District Society is situated.

#### 5.2 RETIREMENT OF AUDITOR

- (a) A retiring auditor shall, unless he has notified the Executive Committee in writing not later than 21 days preceding the date of the Annual General Meeting of his desire not to offer himself for re-appointment at such meeting, be eligible for re-appointment.
- (b) Every other candidate for appointment as an auditor shall be nominated by notice in writing signed by not less than two qualified members of the Society and received by the Secretary of the Executive Committee not later than the 1st February preceding the date of the Annual General Meeting and such notice shall be accompanied by a confirmation in writing from such candidate of his willingness to serve as auditor if appointed.

Mille Project

Aleminist

22 Sanual S.

- (c) Upon receipt of any notice for the appointment of an auditor, the Secretary of the Society shall send a copy thereof to the retiring auditor.
- (d) The names of all candidates nominated for appointment or deemed to be nominated for reappointment shall be sent to all members of the Society with the notice for the Annual General Meeting.

# CHAPTER SIX

# **MEETINGS**

#### 6.1 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

The Executive Committee shall meet at most two (2) weeks to the Society's general meeting at such times and places as the Chairman shall determine, and at such meetings, five (5) members shall form a quorum.

#### 6.2 GENERAL MEETING

A general meeting of the Society shall be convened monthly and at such time and place as may be determined by the Executive Committee and notice of such meeting shall be communicated to the members.

#### 6.3 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Society shall be held not later than the month of May in each year to transact the following businesses:

- (a) To receive the annual report of the Executive Committee and the accounts of the Society for the year ended 31st December with the Auditor's Report thereon;
- (b) The election or re-election of members of the Executive Committee:
- (c) The appointment of auditor in accordance with section 5.1;
- (d) Any Other Business, which has been listed for discussion in the notice of meeting.
- 6.3.1 The Executive Committee shall convene an Annual General Meeting of the Society not later than five (5) months after the accounting year end which shall be 31st December.
- 6.3.2 A member wishing to bring before the Annual General Meeting any motion not relating to the ordinary business of the Society may do so provided:

18

Alemmung

( ) 899 .

that notice in respect of the proposed motion has been sent to the Secretariat of the District Society not later than 60 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting;

- (ii) that not less than five members entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting have given notice in writing to the General Secretary not later than 50 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting expressing their desire that the proposed motion should be brought before the Annual General Meeting.
- 6.3.3 The Executive Committee may, whenever it thinks fit, convene a special meeting of the Society for any purpose relating to the interest of the Society, and shall do so within twenty-one (21) days from the receipt by the General Secretary of the Society of a requisition in writing signed by not less than 5 members and stating the subject of the proposed meeting. Only such businesses as is specified in the notice convening such meeting shall be transacted.

#### 6.4 NOTICE OF MEETING

- (a) An Annual General or Special meeting of the Society shall be called by twenty-one (21) days' notice in writing at the least.
- (b) The notice of the meeting shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the day for which it is given and shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting and in the case of business other than the ordinary business of the Society, the general nature of that business.
- (c) In the case of the Annual General Meeting, the General Secretary shall send to the members of the Society the notice of the Annual Report of the Executive Committee, a copy of the Audited Accounts of the Society, a list of persons nominated for election into the Executive Committee or as auditor and particulars of all motions to be brought before the meeting under Section 6.3 above.

#### 6.5 CHAIRMAN OF MEETINGS

- (a) The Chairman of the Society shall be Chairman of all meetings of the Society and Executive Committee meetings. In his absence, the Vice Chairman or Deputy Vice Chairman shall preside over the meeting.
- (b) In the absence of the three officers mentioned in section 6.5 (a) above, members present shall elect a protem Chairman from those present.

#### 6.6 QUORUM AT MEETINGS -

- (a) The Quorum for the Executive Committee meeting shall be five (5) members.
- (b) At each General, Annual General or Special Meeting of the Society, ten (10) members eligible to vote and present in person, shall constitute a quorum.

Ademining

(c) If members present could not form a quorum thirty minutes after the time appointed, the meeting shall stand adjourned for one week and to be held at the same time and place or, if such place is not available, such other place as the Executive Committee may determine where the members then present and eligible to vote, notwithstanding that there may be less than ten (10) of such members present in person, shall proceed to transact the business of the meeting.

#### 6.7 ADJOURNMENT OF MEETINGS

Subject to the provisions of this Bye law, the Chairman of any meeting of the Society may, with the consent of the members, adjourn the meeting.

#### 6.8 VOTING AT MEETINGS AND DEMAND FOR POLL

- (a) At Annual General Meeting, Special or Monthly meeting of the Society, a resolution put to vote at the meeting shall be decided by show of hands or by e-voting as may be applicable.
- (b) Every member present in person and eligible to vote shall have one vote.
- (c) If a poll is duly demanded or is required to be taken, it shall be taken in such manner as the Chairman shall direct, and the result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll is taken.
- (d) In the case of equality of votes, whether by show of hands or by poll, the Chairman of the meeting shall be entitled to a casting vote.

#### 6.9 MINUTES OF MEETINGS

Proper minutes shall be recorded of all resolutions and proceedings of meetings of the Society and its Executive Committee and all minutes shall be signed by the Chairman and General Secretary of the meeting to which it relates after adoption.

Aggranus ...

# CHAPTER SEVEN

# **FINANCE**

#### 7.1 SOURCES OF FUNDS

The funds of the Society shall be derived from

- (a) Members' annual dues
- (b) Subventions and grants from the Institute
- (c) Contributions or levies on members by whatever name and for whatever purpose demanded
- (d) Donations or other miscellaneous collections
- (e) Fines and all monies from other sources
- (f) Returns and profits from investments
- (g) Training programmes and consultancy services by itself or in collaboration with other organizations.
- (h) Loans from Financial Institutions to execute specific projects/programmes as and when the need arises subject to ratification by the members and approval of the Council of the Institute.

#### 7.2 BANKING OF FUNDS

(a) All funds of the Society shall be paid and kept in the account of the Society in any Commercial bank approved by the Executive Committee.

(b) All funds received by the Society shall be paid into the Society's bank account within 24 hours or the next working day.

21

A Survivor

## 7.3 SIGNATORIES TO THE BANK ACCOUNT

#### COMPOSITION

- (a) The authorized signatories to the Society's bank account are as follows:
  - (i) The Chairman or in the alternate the Vice Chairman (signatories A).
  - (ii) The Treasurer or in the alternate the General Secretary (signatories B).
  - (iii) Items 1 and 2 above are the minimum requirements.

#### 7.4 MANDATE

A. Any of signatories A and B must sign a cheque and/or any instrument to the Bank jointly for it to be valid.

#### 7.5 ANNUAL DUES

The annual dues shall fall due by 1st January of each year and the amount shall be determined periodically by the Executive Committee subject to ratification of members at a general meeting.

#### 7.6 APPLICATION OF FUNDS

- (a) No payments exceeding N10, 000.00 (Ten Thousand Naira only) shall be made except by cheque, signed by the authorized signatories. This amount shall be reviewed from time to time in line economic realities.
- (b) An imprest shall be maintained by the Society as may be prescribed by the Executive Committee.
- (c) The funds of the Society shall be applied as follows:
  - (i) Running cost for the daily administration of the Society.
  - (ii) Any other expenditure approved by the Executive Committee.

#### 7.7 INDEMNITY OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

No member of the Executive Committee shall be personally liable in respect of any liability validly incurred on behalf of the Society in good faith.

2 Mille Carra V

Aleminy

A Drumber ...

# CHAPTER EIGHT

# BENEFITS

#### 8.1 DISTRESSED MEMBER

A member who is distressed shall be referred to the Institute's Benevolent Fund for assistance.

#### 8.2 DEATH

- In the case of death, the District Society in collaboration with the family shall notify the Institute in writing and/or electronically as soon as possible;
- b. The District Society shall upon receipt of application in writing from the family for insurance claims accompanied by death certificates, obituary announcement and any other relevant documents, forward same to the Institute for processing.
- c. The District shall ensure that there is consistency in the manner the deceased member's name is written in all the documents presented to the Institute with the deceased Membership No. where necessary;
- The family of a financial member shall be entitled to a sum assured as determined by the Institute;
- e All correspondence to the Institute relating to section 8.2 supra shall be jointly signed by the District Chairman and District Secretary

#### 8.3 MCPD CREDIT HOURS .

Upon quarterly submission of members' General Meeting and/or Executive Committee Meeting attendance (virtual or physical) to the Institute, every member is entitled to two (2) MCPD credit hours (or such credit hours as may be determined from time to time by the Institute) for each of the meeting attended.

will the said of

MANN STR

#### FACILITY FROM BANK

Subject to the provisions of section 2.1 above, every financial member is entitled to a facility from Stanbic IBTC Chartered Bank and/or any other Bank as approved by the Council of the Institute, based on the category of membership as provided in section 2.1 supra.

#### 8.5 DUTIES/BENEFITS OF AN ACTIVE MEMBER

- Networking with fellow professionals
- Technical presentation by Experts
- Contribute to ICAN growth and development
- d. Leadership Opportunities
- Disseminating important information and support on career path including coaching and mentoring

PROVIDED THAT for a District Society based outside Nigeria, an active member may facilitate reciprocity and Mutual Agreement with any other Professional Accountancy Organisation (PAO) in the host country being an IFAC member recognized by the Institute for the enhancement and benefits of members of the Institute globally.

24

Jasannung Jasan

# CHAPTER NINE

# ZONAL DISTRICT MANAGEMENT

#### 9.1 ZONAL DISTRICT

- A Zonal District shall be made up of the District Societies within any of these geographical areas of Nigeria;
  - (i) Eastern region
  - (ii) Northern region
  - (iii) Western region
  - (iv) Southern region

#### 9.2 AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF ZONAL DISTRICT

The aims and Objectives of a Zonal District shall include the following:

- (a) To organise Zonal Districts Society Conferences.
- To organise joint seminars, webinars and workshops for members within the Zone and other members of the Institute at large;
- (c) To mediate in areas of conflict among the constituent District Societies.
- (d) To ensure that due process is adhered to in the formation of District Societies within the Zone.
- (e) To foster interaction and better understanding amongst District Societies in the Zone.

#### 9.3 ZONAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

There shall be a Zonal Executive Committee that will administer the Zonal Districts.

#### 9.4 COMPOSITION OF ZONAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Zonal Executive Committee shall comprise of the following:

Agaminal

(a) Zonal Chairman
(b) Zonal Vice Chairman
(c) Zonal Secretary
(d) Zonal Assistant Secretary
(e) Zonal Treasurer
(f) The Immediate Past Chairman as Ex-officio

- (a) The Offices shall be contested for by the District Societies and not by individual members.
- (b) The incumbent Chairman of any District Society shall occupy any of the positions.
- (c) If the tenure of the District Chairman ends before the tenure of the position held in the Zone, the outgoing District Chairman shall hand over the Zonal position to the incoming District Chairman.
- (d) The tenure of any Zonal office holder shall be for a non-renewable term of two years.

#### 9.6 ZONAL CONFERENCE

- (b) The composition of the Planning Committee for the Zonal Conference shall be made up of a representative of each District Society within the Zone made up as follows:.
  - Conference Chairman -Representative of the host District Society.
  - Conference advisers shall be the immediate past Conference Chairman and any other past Conference Chairman
  - (iii) Conference Director representative of the host District Society.
  - (iv) Rapporteur General representative of any of the District Societies.
  - (v) Conference Accountant- Chairman of any of the District Societies, save the host District Society
  - Assistant Conference Director shall be a representative of any of the District Societies.
- (c) The Zonal Conference Brochure shall include the pictures of the Principal Officers of the Institute and the Council Members from the Zone
- (d) The Conference Accountant shall prepare and present the accounts of the Conference to the Planning Committee for approval not later than 90 days from the end of the Conference.
- (e) The approved accounts shall be presented to the District Society Chairmen for ratification and disbursement of the surplus NOT LATER THAN 120 days after the conference.

Homins

9.7 FUNDING OF THE ZONE

- (a) An agreed percentage of the surplus from Zonal Conference
- (b) Proceeds from seminars, webinars and workshops
- (c) Donations
- (d) District Society levies.
- (e) Any other payment as may be approved by the zonal executive committee.

#### 9.8 APPLICATION OF THE FUNDS

- (a) Voluntary promotion of accountancy education within the zone
- (b) General Administration of the Zonal office
- (c) Granting of advances to any host District Society for the purpose of the Conference.

#### 9.9 BANKING OF FUNDS

- (a) A Zonal District Bank Account shall be opened and maintained at any commercial bank to be determined by the District Chairmen of the zone.
- (b) The account is to be resident in the Zonal Headquarters.

#### 9.10 SIGNATORIES AND MANDATE TO THE ACCOUNT

The signatories to the Zonal bank account shall be made up of the following officers:

(a) Category A
Zonal Chairman
Zonal Vice Chairman

(b) Category B Zonal Treasurer Zonal Secretary

Any of signatories A & B must sign a cheque or any other instrument jointly for it to be valid.

# 9.11 ZONAL CONFERENCE BANK ACCOUNT

- (a) The bank account shall be determined by the District Societies Chairmen in the Zone.
- (b) The account shall be opened in the branch of the bank located in the town hosting the Conference.
- (c) The signatories are to change on yearly basis to reflect the new Conference officers to operate the account.
- (d) If the official banker for any Annual Conference is different from the usual banker, such account shall be maintained for the purpose of that Conference and closed to prevent multiplicity of accounts.

27

Janua de Stato

#### 9.12 SIGNATORIES AND MANDATE TO THE CONFERENCE ACCOUNT

The signatories to the Zonal conference bank account shall be made up of the following officers:

- (a) Category A Conference Chairman
- (b) Category B Conference Accountant Conference Director

Any of signatories A & B must sign a cheque or any other instrument jointly for it to be valid.

# CHAPTER TEN

# **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### 10.1 DISTRICT COORDINATION

At the beginning of each Presidential Year, the Council shall appoint a District Coordinator who shall be a Council Member and shall represent the President and Council at the District. The Vice President shall coordinate District Societies in the Diaspora, and shall visit the Districts as may be approved by Council.

Functions/Duties of a District Coordinator:

- Acts as a mentor to the District Society.
- b. Ensures that the district society he is assigned to, obeys ICAN rules in its administration especially matters relating to finance, succession plan, election etc.
- Acts as an adviser to the District Exco in particular and the entire district in general.
- d. Since the President cannot visit all the districts in a presidential year, the district coordinator should step in and represent the President and Council in the district.
- Send very vital-information as may be approved by Council to the district.
- Ensures that the district election is rancor free.
- He ensures that the tenure of the district Exco is obeyed subject to the Bye Law.
- He advises the district Exco to be transparent and accountable.
- Advises the district to apply for its annual subvention from the Institute timely (after meeting the requirements).

BS January Street

- Encourages the Exco to apply for appropriate credit hours from the MCPD for events organized by the district that attract credit hours. This will encourage members to attend district activities.
- k. During his visitation, he should inform the members of the need to pay their subscriptions and the benefits they stand to gain e.g. life assurance, membership ID card, PhD grant, discount at some hotels, airlines etc.
- I. He is to visit the District Society twice a year or as may be approved by the President.

#### 10.2 DISTRICT COOPERATIVE SOCIETY

The District Executive may set up a Cooperative Society where necessary for the purpose of fostering financial assistance and entrepreneurship among the members.

## 10.3 PATRONS AND COMMITTEE OF PAST CHAIRMEN

- (a) There shall be a Committee of Past Chairmen which shall comprise of all past Chairmen of the Society.
- (b) The function of the Committee shall be to act as an advisory body to the Executive Committee of the Society and resolve conflicts between members or between the Executive Committee and members.
- (c) The Executive Committee may appoint notable members of the Institute and/or notable person(s) in the Community of jurisdiction as Patrons of the Society subject to ratification by a two third majorify of members present at a general meeting of the Society.
- (d) Patrons shall also act as advisers to the Executive Committee and resolve conflicts between members or between the Executive Committee and members.

#### 10.4 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE COOPERATIVE SOCIETY

- The contributors shall elect the President of the Cooperative Society who shall be a member of the District Society.
- Other elective Officers are: Secretary, Financial Secretary, Treasurer and Public Relations
   Officer
- The District Chairman shall not be the President of the Cooperative Society
- d. The District Executive shall be represented in the Executive Committee of the Cooperative by the current District Chairman or his Vice and he shall not hold any elective or appointive office in the Management of the Cooperative Society

Henning

29

Burrows

The District Chairman shall regularly brief the District Society Executive Committee during its Executive Meeting, of the operations of the Cooperative Society.

#### 10.5 CONFLICT

Where any provisions of this Bye law is in conflict with the ICAN Act or any directive of the Institute, the provision of the ICAN Act and the directive of the Institute shall take precedent. This Bye Law takes precedent over the individual district society Bye Law. Any issue that may arise in any District that is not covered by this Bye Law, should be referred to Council for consideration.

#### 10.6 DISPUTE

In the event of any dispute arising as to the interpretation of this Bye law, such dispute shall be referred to the Council of the Institute which decision shall be final and binding on all parties.

#### 10.7 AMENDMENT

Amendment to this Bye law shall be proposed to the District Societies Committee which shall consider and recommend to the Institute's Council for approval.

#### 10.8 REVIEW

This Bye Law shall be reviewed every five (5) years or as may be decided by Council.

#### 10.9 COMMENCEMENT DATE

This Bye-Law shall become operational from the date as may be approved by Council.

#### 10.10 INTERPRETATION

In this Bye-Law, unless otherwise stated:

- (a) "COUNCIL" means the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria.
- (b) "THE HOUSE" means members present at any meeting.
- (c) "THE SOCIETY" means every District Society of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN).
- (d) "TOKEN" means an amount to be decided by the Executive Committee
- (e) "HE" shall mean the word "SHE" where a female is the person referred to.
- (f) "FINANCIAL MEMBER" means a member who is up to date in his District Society dues and subscription to the Institute as at 1st January of every year.

Aleminings

wish & State of the state of th

(g ) "AGM" means Annual General Meeting of the District Society.

#### 10.11 PROTOCOLS

At any meeting or function of the Society, the following shall be recited before consideration of other matters and this shall be adhered to by members of the Society in conjunction with this Bye-Law:

- (i) The National anthem.
- (ii) The ICAN anthem.
- (iii ) The Country Anthem-where the District Society situates

#### 10.12 GROUPING OF DISTRICT SOCIETIES

Group A - More Than 500 Members: N500,000

Group B - Between 200-499 Members-N400,000

This is presently used in payment of subventions

Group C 25 -199 - Members- N300,000.00

Million Cand

Alemning

The same of the sa

#### SCHEDULE 1

## GUIDELINES FOR THE FORMATION OF A DISTRICT SOCIETY

- The minimum number of members shall be seventy five (75). However, the requirement for Northern Region (save Federal Capital Territory) shall be thirty (30). In the case of the District outside Nigeria, the minimum number shall be determined by the Council of the Institute as the need arises for such creation of the District.
- 2 The proposed District Society must have held a minimum of three meetings with attendance and minutes of meetings.
- 3 It must have in place an Interim Executive Committee. The members must all be financially up to date with their former District Societies and the Institute.
- 4 It must be sponsored by a mother District which shall actively participate in the initial meetings.
- 5 All members of the proposed District must be financial members of the Institute and must have been active members in their former District Societies.
- The Mother District shall make an application in writing for the creation of the proposed District Society. Such application shall include minutes and attendance of the initial three (3) meetings held, full names and Membership No of members of the proposed District Society.

#### DE-REGISTRATION OF A DISTRICT SOCIETY

The Governing Council of the Institute shall direct that a District Society be de-registered and shall give directions for the disposal of the Society's assets where the following situations arise:

32

Hemminny

JESTONWA DESTIN

- Where the District Society has been unable to hold its monthly general meeting for six months and above.
- Where the Society has failed to submit its audited financial statements and annual reports for a minimum period of two years.
- Failure to hold two consecutive Annual General Meetings.
- Where the number of financial members of the Society falls below the prescribed minimum number of members.
- Any other reason as may be determined by Council.

#### SCHEDULE 2

#### **GUIDELINES FOR THE FORMATION OF CHAPTERS**

#### Definition:

A Chapter is a body or group of Chartered Accountants working in the same organization, established for the pursuit of a common goal irrespective of the geographical location of members and recognized as such by the Governing Council of the Institute.

#### Objectives:

The primary objective of a Chapter is to enable members drive issues affecting members' welfare such as:

- Group sponsorship of members to Accountants' Conference and other Institute's events:
- Members Continuing Professional Development and other Training Programmes.
- Facilitation of group payment of Members' Annual Subscriptions.
- Assisting members in distress.
- Promoting networking and harmonious working relationships among members.
- Enhancing social interactions among members.

# Criteria for the formation of a Chapter:

- Minimum of 100 members who must be financially up to date with their District Societies and the Institute.
- Must have a list of Interim Executive members who must have been active members in their various District Societies.
- Must be sponsored by a District Society.

Must have Relationship with District Societies and the Institute

Afonning

A San in de 1936

- Notwithstanding their membership of a Chapter, all members shall continue to be financial and active members of District Societies.
- A Chapter shall not convert to a District Society.
- Chapters should not be equated with District Societies and are therefore not to be considered as members of the District Societies Committee of the Institute. However, the chapters are entitled to attend the district societies committee meeting to keep them abreast with the happenings in the Institute, but they have no voting right.
- There shall be no separate Council Coordinators appointed for Chapters to avoid division.
- Chapters shall not be entitled to subventions from the Institute.
- The Chairman of a chapter should be in an office for two (2) years and no more.

# THE DISTRICT SOCIETY BYE LAW REVIEW SUB-COMMITTEE

The Members that constitute the District Society Bye Law Review Sub-Committee and who in no small measure out of their very busy schedule contributed their quota are:

4	Chief D C.S Alaribe, FCA**	100	Chairma
	GIIIGI D C.S AIGIDE, I CA		CHAIRMAN

- Hajia Queensley Seghosime, mni, FCA \*\* Member
- Rev. Samson Disu, FCA\*\*
   Member
- Mr. Jude Sunny Egbo, FCA\*\*
   Member
- Mr. Shehu Gbadamosi Dep. Director, Membership Affairs (Secretary)
- Barr. Emeka Iheonu Legal Representative
- Mr. Gibson Omorodion Assistant Secretary

Approved by Council on this day .....

Signed by Chairman

Hominin

<sup>\*\*\*</sup> Denote Council Members of the Institute.

Chief D. C. S. Alaribe, FCA
Chairman Taskforce/Bye Law Review Sub-Committee

Approved by Council:

Prof Ahmed Kumshe, FCA Registrar/Chief Executive Dame Onome Joy Adewuyi, BSc, MSc, FCIB FCA 56th ICAN President

Plot 16, Idowu Taylor Street Victoria Island Lagos, Nigeria

www.icanig.org

